
Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Budget Hearing & Meeting Agenda  
Monday, Jun 13, 2022, 6:00 – 8:00 pm  

ZOOM LINK 
             Kyra Rohner, President 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-06-13 

Page 1 of 5 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER        Rohner 

II. Consent agenda (ACTION)       Rohner 
a. Additions/deletions from the agenda 
b. Minutes of previous regular and Budget Committee meetings 

III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest     Rohner 

IV. Open forum for general public, comments & communications  Rohner 
In the interests of time and to allow as many members of the public an 
opportunity to speak, the board asks guests to limit remarks to five (5) minutes if 
speaking on behalf of an individual, or ten (10) minutes if speaking on behalf of a 
group or organization. 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Budget Hearing 

i. 2021-22 Supplemental Budget adoption (ACTION)  Rohner 

ii. 2022-23 Budget adoption (ACTION)    Rohner 

b. ODOT Campbell/Resort Permanent Easement (ACTION)  Stokes 

c. Discussion of 2022-23 officers & regular meeting day/time Stokes 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
a. None          

VII. REPORTS 
a. Director        Stokes 

b. Finance        Hawes 

VIII. Agenda items for next regular meeting:  Jul 11, 2022    Rohner 

IX. ADJOURNMENT        Rohner 

    
 

The times of all agenda items except open forum are approximate and are subject to change. Other 
matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session may 
be held in accordance with the following. Topics marked with an asterisk* are scheduled for the 
current meeting's executive session.  

ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations   ORS 192.660 (2) (e, j) Property 
ORS 192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights   ORS 192.660 (2) (a, b, i) Personnel 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84263326583?pwd=M1NBQ1pZczVibVgySDA4MFhJOVJ5Zz09


Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Jun 13, 2022, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-06-13 

Page 2 of 5 

Annotated Agenda 
I. CALL TO ORDER         Rohner 

II. Consent agenda (ACTION)       Rohner 
a. Additions/deletions from the agenda 
b. Minutes of previous meeting(s) 

Attachments: 

 II.b.i. Board meeting minutes, May 9 2022 

 II.b.ii. Budget Committee meeting minutes, May 25 2022   
 

III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest     Rohner 
IV. Open forum for general public, comments & communications  Rohner 
V. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Budget Hearing 
i. 2021-22 Supplemental Budget adoption (ACTION)   Rohner 

Attachments: 

 V.a.i.1. Resolution No. 2021-22.05 

 V.a.i.2-8. Legal budget documents 

 V.a.i.3. Ten percent rule analysis 

As usual, in this final month of the fiscal year, I am proposing a supplementary budget to fine 
tune category lines and ensure district funds are in compliance with local budget law. The 
resolution authorizes appropriation of unanticipated surplus revenue and adjustment of various 
line items that are under or overspent. 

Grand total changes amount to an increase of $87,809. This is a balance from a total General 
Fund increase of $67,020, Other Fund increase of $8,000, Sage Fund increase of $5,789, and 
Reserve Fund increase of $7,000.  Primary changes to General Fund categories are a downward 
correction of Personnel Services by $26,000, increase to Materials & Services by $40,000, 
increase to Transfers of $12,000, and an increase of Unexpended Fund Balance (UEFB) Reserve 
by $40,000. 

 

ii. 2022-23 budget adoption (ACTION)    Rohner 
Attachments: 

 V.a.ii.1. Resolution No. 2021-22.06 

 V.a.ii.2. LB-20 Resources 

 V.a.ii.3. LB-30 Requirements summary – Allocated & Unallocated 

 V.a.ii.4. LB-31 Personnel Services 

 V.a.ii.5. LB-31 Materials & Services 

 V.a.ii.6. LB-10 Other Funds 

 V.a.ii.7. LB-10 Sage Fund 

 V.a.ii.8. LB-11 Reserve Fund   



Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Jun 13, 2022, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-06-13 

Page 3 of 5 

 V.a.ii.9. LB-1 Notice of Budget Hearing 

 V.a.ii.10. LB-50 Notice of Property Tax and Certification of Intent to Impose a Tax, Fee, 
Assessment or Charge on Property 
 

The purpose of the Budget Hearing is to receive citizens’ testimony on the budget approved by 
the budget committee. Additional hearings may be held. All hearings are open to the public. 

Annually, the Board must approve the budget and tax rate for the coming fiscal year. The 
proposed 2022-23 budget, as approved by the Budget Committee at its May 25 meeting, is 
included in this meeting packet.   

According to the Local Budgeting in Oregon guide, the Board must “enact a resolution or 
ordinance to 1) formally adopt the budget, 2) make appropriations, and if needed, 3) levy, and 
4) categorize any tax. The budget is the basis for making appropriations and certifying the tax 
levy. The resolution or ordinance must be adopted no later than June 30.” 

For final adoption, I am proposing no changes from that approved by the Budget Committee.  
 
Final 2022-23 budget adoption requires passage of Resolution 2021-22.06. Following approval, I 
submit the proper paperwork to the County. 
 

b. ODOT Campbell/Resort Permanent Easement (ACTION)  Stokes 

Attachments: 

 V.b.1 ODOT Easement letter 

 V.b.2 ODOT Public Projects Brochures  

 V.b.3 ODOT Easement contract  
 

As part of ADA upgrades being made to sidewalks along Campbell Street, ODOT is proposing to 
pay BCLD $2,000 for a permanent and various temporary easements necessary to install a 
sidewalk curb ramp at the corner of Campbell and Resort Streets. The area for the permanent 
easement is where the large cottonwood was removed a few years ago. 
 
The board packet includes information sent by an engineering firm subcontracted by ODOT, 
HDR, Inc. The offer is valid for 40 days, which I expect is until about July 8.  I recommend the 
board accept this proposal.  
 

c. Discussion of 2022-23 officers & regular meeting day/time Stokes   

At the July meeting, the Board will elect a new President and Vice President. For this agenda 
item, the Board will discuss who is willing to serve in those positions.  

Also, the Board must annually adopt a resolution setting its regular meeting time. The Board's 
current regular meeting time is the second Monday of the month at 6.00p. The Board will 



Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Jun 13, 2022, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-06-13 

Page 4 of 5 

discuss whether to continue or adjust the meeting schedule so that a resolution can be passed 
during the July meeting. 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 

VII. REPORTS 
a. Director        Stokes 

i. General 

 Facilities and vehicles  
o Brake inspection for GMC Denali – The Denali may have an issue with its braking 

system or Stabilitrac traction control sensor. Ed has scheduled service this week 

to resolve the warning bell and message.  

o  Roof leak at Haines – With the heavy rain storms, a leak caused a ceiling panel 
to become fully saturated at Haines. Staff was able to move books to avoid 
damage and capture dripping water with a bucket. Ed was able to temporarily 
resolve the issue, and is now exploring costs of a more comprehensive roof 
repair. 

 Marketing & Publicity 
o Baker City Herald, Go Explore magazine – I purchased a quarter page ad for $515 

in this publication distributed to locals and visitors that promotes our digital 
library, particularly audiobooks. 

 Operations & Services  
o BrainFuse – The State Library of Oregon 

sponsorship of this online service is ending. BCLD 
usage was among the top LEO member libraries 
that participated in offering the resources. We will 
be partnering with Crook County Library to 
continue the homework help online tutoring 
service and resources for job seekers at about 
$2,500/year. 

o Solar Charging Station – The Friends have approved 
the expenditure of $7,000 for a “Smart Charger” 
solar charging station in the north parking area of 
the Baker branch. This will be available to the 
public for recharging of mobile devices at all hours. 
Color selection is up for discussion. 

o Barcode Scanner Upgrades – We recently discovered that many of our barcode 
scanners used at customer service points were not compatible with reading 
digital barcodes from patrons phones, so have purchased units to replace 
devices at those critical points. Patrons with the Sage Catalog App installed are 
able to present their library card barcode with their phone.  

https://solarchargingstation.com/smart-charger/


Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Monday, Jun 13, 2022, 6:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 

 

PS / 2021-06-13 

Page 5 of 5 

 Programming & Outreach 
o Youth Services  

 2022 Summer Reading Program is underway. The theme this year is “Read 

Beyond the Beaten Path.” Missy has a busy schedule of events planned, 

which is available on the library website.  

 Virtual Program on Traditional Japanese Music - June 23 at 10:00 am, we will 

offer remote delivery of a program about traditional Japanese music. This 

program is sponsored by the Morikami Museum and Japanese Garden based 

in Florida and Toshiba International Foundation. I was connected to them 

through my involvement with the Japanese Exchange and Teaching Alumni 

Association (JETAA). 

 Staff & Volunteers   
o Volunteer Appreciation Event – A luncheon in the park was provided for library 

volunteers on May 20. About 8 people attended. Coordination of the event by 
library staff Sylvia Bowers was excellent.  

o Summer positions – Grants will fund teen summer internships at Baker and 
Huntington branches, mostly to help with summer reading programming. We 
have also hired a temporary IT Assistant at 16 hours/week to help Jim with a 
backlog of tasks through August.  

  Safety & Security 
o  Abandoned property found under boardwalk decking – Ed will be adding some 

type of fencing to discourage use of the space under the boardwalk for 
temporary personal storage. Items found recently include a sleeping bag and 
clothing, and bag with syringes and spoon. 
 

b. Finance        Hawes 
Attachments:  

 VII.b.i. Not yet available. 

Reports to be delivered at the meeting. 
  

VIII. Agenda items for next regular meeting:  Jul 11, 2022    Rohner 

 Board officers & meeting times 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT         Rohner 
 

https://www.bakerlib.org/kids-teens


Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

Call to Order The meeting was held in the Riverside conference room at the Baker County 
Public Library, 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon, the administrative 
building for the District.  
 
Directors attending the meeting in person include Gary Dielman, Betty Palmer, 
and Beth Bigelow. Joan Spriggs attended the meeting remotely on Zoom this 
month. Also attending were Perry Stokes, Director and Christine Hawes, 
Business Manager.  
 
There were no guests. 
 
Betty Palmer called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. A quorum was confirmed 
present with 4 board members in attendance. 
 

Consent Agenda Palmer asked for any additions or deletions to tonight’s agenda or minutes.  
There were no changes to either.  Dielman made a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented; Spriggs seconded; motion passed (4 yea; 
Dielman, Palmer, Spriggs, Bigelow) unanimously by the 4 directors present. 
 

Conflicts of 
Interest 

Palmer asked if there were any conflicts or potential conflicts of interest to be 
declared.  There were none. 
 

Public Comment Palmer moved to public comments.   
 
Stokes had no correspondence or comments to share.  

OLD BUSINESS: 
Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget 
Draft 

Palmer turned the meeting over to Stokes to present the budget draft. 
 
Stokes presented the Legal Budget (LB) spreadsheets in the Board Packet and 
by projection on a large monitor. Starting with LB20, cash carryover and prior 
taxes are above the amount budgeted and will be appropriated in June; other 
revenue lines were reviewed in detail.  An increase to Donations and Grants is 
mostly for anticipation of getting a FEMA grant to cover expenses.  Stokes 
intends to repost non-typical revenues over to the Other Fund in order to keep 
the General Fund more representative of standard operations. 
 
Looking at next year, the cash carryover is anticipated to start at about 
$550,000.  There were no other big changes in revenue lines.  The tax 
revenues, on line 30, is projected to increase by $90,000 more over the prior 
year, which will be distributed between Personnel and M&S.  In the current 
year budget, surplus revenues from tax payments projected from the County 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Assessor report will be appropriated with a Supplemental Budget.  Some 
assessments have been reported to be in litigation, according to the County 
Treasurer. While the amount of impact to the district was not reported, Stokes 
estimates that up to $50,000 appears to be tied up, which adds to the 
challenge of budgeting. There is no available timeline for resolution of that 
matter.  
 
Looking at LB30, which is an overview of Personnel and Materials & Services 
categories, Stokes addressed the current year adjustments, reviewing each line 
in detail.  In Personnel - Benefits, the Health Insurance and PERS lines are 
underspent and will be corrected downward.  In Materials & Services, 
Collection development will be increased by $17,000 and Library operations 
will increase by $10,000.   
 
Stokes proposes a 5% Cost of Living Increase for staff, given that the inflation 
rate is currently at nearly 9% and expected to remain high. He surveyed other 
library districts about their planned COLI increase amounts. Of those that 
responded, 3 have said they plan to give 5% increases, others said 2% due to 
existing union contract. Stokes stated that 5% is doable with this budget.  
Dielman asked Stokes if the planned COLI would apply to his pay rate.  Stokes 
said no, the Director salary is currently competitive with rates at peer libraries. 
Therefore, the COLI for his line will be half the rate for staff (2.5%) due to the 
goal of reducing the pay disparity between the CEO and senior library staff. 
Currently Managing Librarians are compensated at 56% of the Director salary; 
Stokes is aiming to get that rate between 65-70%.   
 
Overall, Personnel will increase by $73,000 next year over the original budget 
for this year.  Collection development will increase by $6,000.  Facilities and 
Maintenance increase includes the subscription for hotspots in case funding 
support for that service is no longer available.  With high fuel costs, the line for 
bookmobile and vehicles is increased. 
 
Page 2 of LB-30 shows the Debt Service and Transfers.  The district is still 
carrying a small debt of about $10,000 to Baker City from the Resort Street 
Project LID which is paid down by $2,000 annually.  In Transfers for next year, 
the transfer to Severance Reserve will be skipped for other needs.  Hawes 
confirmed that the Severance Reserve is two or three years ahead of 
anticipated payouts.  No Election Reserve transfer is needed next year.  
Transfers for Technology and Capital Improvement Reserves are planned.  
Stokes anticipates the Operations Reserve to be about $546,000 next year.   In 
the packets to be sent to the budget committee, he will provide graphs to show 
the historical trends. 
 
Looking at the detail LB-31 for Personnel Services, one of the primary budget 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

challenges is retirement of the IT Manager Jim White planned for December 
2022.  Stokes has proposed restoring that position to full-time in order to allow 
the successful recruitment and retention of a qualified candidate.   
 
Several staff will receive Step increases per the Wage Scale, assuming their 
performance merits it.  Stokes reviewed the personnel lines individually, 
speaking to the changes for each staff person. He showed a staff salary graph 
and reviewed highlights.  Palmer asked if Joan Spriggs could hear the narrative.  
Joan responded that she could hear very well and see the materials being 
presented.  Stokes said that he is pleased that the staff costs are looking good.  
He said that Facilities Manager, Ed Adamson anticipates partially retiring to half 
time in spring 2023.  Two major repair projects will be completed by then, plus 
various other improvement projects. 
 
Switching to LB-31 Materials & Services, Stokes reviewed current budget 
changes with the largest being increased Bookmobile fuel and maintenance 
costs.  Other major increases include Legal Administration; he has added 
$3,500 to allow the possibility of retaining legal counsel to look at district 
policies, as needed.  He said that peer libraries seem to pay out this amount on 
average for their legal services.  Palmer said she is looking at the trend for 
utilities, it appears costs are increasing. This is not surprising given propane 
cost increases.  Stokes talked about the electrical increase at the Richland 
branch and ideas for what may be causing that. He wonders if Fire station or 
Grange building activity may actually be using more power and will explore the 
feasibility of getting an isolated meter installed.  
 
The next sheet was LB-10 for Other Uses funds.  Certain grants and designated 
funds are run through this fund.  Stokes will be increasing grant lines.  He 
anticipates grants from the Oregon State Library and possibly Baker County 
Cultural Coalition.  Increasing this line will increase the cash carryover.  For 
most items, next year is pretty much the same with the exception that we 
won’t be transferring in the $10,000 for severance.  That change will be made 
on the budget committee packets. 
 
LB-11 is the Capital Investment Fund, Stokes will be making a slight change in 
the supplementary budget due to interest earnings.  A large sum will be spent 
out for the boiler project and roof project.  The timing for billing on the boiler 
project is uncertain due to continued minor leaks which must be resolved 
before final payment will be authorized.   The new boiler has had issues again, 
first a circulation pump failed then recently a motor has failed.  The work is 
covered under warranty.  The motor should be ready at the end of the week.  
Stokes discussed upcoming major project expenses.  He has budgeted enough 
to have spending authority next fiscal year in case payment is delayed to after 
July 1. 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 
The last sheet LB-11 is the Sage.  Stokes is adjusting the current year budget 
closer to actual.  He did present the budget to the Sage Uer Counsel at the 
March meeting.  The current Sage Administrator plans to retire in June 2023.  
There was discussion on personnel changes and budget strategies to boost 
Sage revenues to allow for the director replacement.  The projected cash 
carryover is more than anticipated in this fund.  He reviewed each budget line.  
The COLI will be given to both the administrator and the secondary 
administrator who is under contract.  
 
He reviewed anticipated tax resources. 
 
Palmer thanked Stokes for the presentation.  She asked if anyone had 
questions.  With no further discussion. 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
None 

 

REPORTS: 
Director 

Palmer moved to reports. 
 
Stokes gave the administrative report: 
 
Facilities: 
Baker HVAC system - The replacement circulation pump motor failed, disabling 
the primary heating system at the main branch once again.  Facilities staff hope 
to have it repaired again in about a week. 
 
Teen Room shelving expansion - the quote for 4 new shelving units is $5,800.  
Stokes is considering use of Memorial funds for this purchase. 
 
ADA - Ed hasn’t gotten started on the ADA door openers since he is still focused 
on the boiler project. 
 
Personnel: 
Halfway branch staff  Lourdes Cuevas has retired.  Along with 3 other Baker 
staff, Stokes visited Halfway on 4/29 for a retirement celebration to honor her.  
There was great community attendance for the event.  People were able to 
also meet her replacement, Genine Hanson-Fillmore, who has been hired and 
trained alongside Lourdes for her last week of work.  Lourdes has agreed to 
continue as a substitute for Halfway and Richland as needed. 
 
Recognition - Stokes has two more eCards for staff work anniversary 
recognition.  Palmer congratulated Stokes on 15 years. 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 
Volunteer luncheon - in honor of our volunteers, we are hosting a lunch event 
on Friday, May 20, at 1:00pm in the Geiser-Pullman park.  The event will be 
catered by The Little Pig. 
 
Staff Training - the annual staff training day is planned for August 18. 
 
Programs: 
Free Comic Book Day - the event took place May 7, Saturday.  It was very well 
attended, Stokes reported, with a line out the door waiting to come in at 
opening time.  Door count logs show 140 people in about 90 minutes; typically, 
a Saturday door count is 150 for all day.  The remainders have been sent out to 
the branches.  Stokes worked with a new comic shop sponsor this year, The 
Collectors Outpost from Meridian, Idaho.  The sponsor gave all of the comics 
for free.  Bigelow asked if it was only kids getting the comic books or do adults 
also get them.  Stokes said comics are produced for all ages, some suitable for 
All Ages, some for Teens, some for Adults/Mature Readers.  He discussed a 
learning experience he had with distributing one particular title to community 
branches of which there was a surplus. He discovered too late that the title, 
from one of the biggest comic publishers, represented one particular 
worldview. Distribution continued as planned since suspending it due to 
viewpoint would have been censorship. But in the future, he will be sure to 
have a variety of different works to offer readers.  He will also ensure that 
works are available better suited to the conservative family audiences in our 
communities.  The library mission is to provide a diversity of viewpoints. 
 
Safety and Security: 
None 
 

Finance Report Hawes has handed out Financial Reports and electronic copies are available for 
those attending on zoom. 
 
General fund received tax turnovers of $7,920.97 on May 2.  In Personnel 
Services, the overall percent of budget is on target.  In Materials & Services, in 
the book budget notable checks include Ingram $6,238.76 for the monthly 
book order and Shared Results $397.00 for TechTalk subscription. In Building & 
Maintenance, checks included Arros Electric $1,905.66 mostly for the Sumpter 
Library to retrofit lights to LED and Stan’s Heating $276.25 for routine 
maintenance at Huntington.  The VISA bill totaled 6,437.50 and the complete 
VISA detail is available for review for the person signing those checks. 
 
The Other Funds received $225.95 in Amazon book sale proceeds in April and 
wrote one check to visa of $65.37 for book sales shipping costs.  A cash 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

balances report is included in the financial report. 
 
The Capital Investment Fund wrote one check to Landmark Construction of 
$45,000 to start the roof project.  Checking and Savings account detail reports 
are attached to the financial report for review.  Stokes asked Hawes whether 
the auditor had responded to being able to spend funds directly from this fund.  
She said that she had received an email confirming that we can spend these 
funds directly with some direction on how to go about that. 
 
The Sage Funds had no income.  Sage wrote 4 checks to small couriers totaling 
$1,736.06 and a check on April 1 for courier services of $1,150.  It wrote a 
check to VISA for $262.88 including Evergreen conference registration $55 and 
Marcive record maintenance $93.48.  There were two large checks written to 
Interactive Science for additional Wowbrary subscriptions of $2,386.11 and to 
Equinox $2,500 for additional tech support time related to software updates.  
Sage cash balance report is included in the financial report.   
 
The Approved Bills Lists include printouts for all 3 funds.  Each report has 
highlighted large items with a brief explanation for you to initial your approval 
and review.  Those on Zoom received an electronic copy of these reports. 
 
Checks were signed by the board members present at the meeting. 
 

Next Meeting The next meeting is for the budget committee on May 25, Wednesday, at 
5:00pm. 
 
The next regular board meeting will be June 13, 2022 at 6:00pm. The primary 
agenda items will be to adopt the next year budget and approve end-year 
changes to the current budget. 
 
Dielman talked about helping a local teacher with historic photos. 
 
Stokes said that he wanted to make the board aware of an issue he has been 
involved with at the state level.  He said that he is currently Co-Chair of the 
Intellectual Freedom Committee of the Oregon Library Association (OLA IFC). In 
late March the committee received an incident report that a book in the 
Medford School District was being challenged due to a parent complaint. The 
school decided to pull that book from shelves. To determine if policies and 
procedures were properly followed, the Intellectual Freedom Committee has 
been corresponding with the school district but has encountered some 
evasiveness.  He described the mission of the IFC and legal reasons for libraries 
and schools to have strong policies in place to handle such challenges. 
 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2022 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

Hawes mentioned her involvement in the recent Field-2-Fork program held at 
the Fairgrounds.  The program is a field trip for local 5th grade students.  She 
briefly described the program.  Both Bigelow and Palmer said it was very good. 
 

Adjourn The meeting was adjourned at 7:10pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes 
Secretary to the Board 
PS/ch 

 



Baker County Library District 
Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 25, 2022 

 

Page 1 of 6 

 

Call to Order The meeting was held in the Riverside conference room at the Baker County Public 
Library, 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon, the administrative building for the Baker 
County Library District.  
 
Those attending in person are Directors Kyra Rohner, Betty Palmer, Gary Dielman, and 
Beth Bigelow.  Budget Committee members present included Bob Savage and Joy 
LeaMaster. Also attending is Perry Stokes, Director, and Christine Hawes, BCLD Business 
Manager. 
 
Those attending online via Zoom include Joan Spriggs and Linda Collier, both from 
Halfway.  Stokes worked out some audio technical difficulties with those online. 
 
President of the board, Kyra Rohner, called the meeting to order at 5:05pm.  Stokes 
displayed the board packet on a large screen.  The Brief Version of budget packets were 
printed for each member along with the Budget Message for FY2022-2023.  The Full 
Version of the budget packets is available on the District website or by request.  Stokes 
demonstrated on the monitor how to find the budget documents on the website. 
 
Rohner asked everyone to introduce themselves to satisfy roll call.  There were brief 
introductions.   It was noted that a quorum is present. 
 

Elect Chair of 
Budget Committee 

Rohner asked for nominations to chair the budget committee meeting.    
 
Savage nominated LeaMaster to be the chair.  There were no further nominations. 
Dielman seconded the motion.  Rohner called for a vote.  The motion passed by 6 
members present in person (Dielman, Rohner, LeaMaster, Savage, Palmer and Bigelow); 
some difficulty with online communication so two online were unable to participate.  
Stokes rebooted the Zoom system and was able to establish voice communication.  
Rohner called for a new vote, after repeating the motion; motion passed unanimously. 
 
Stokes said that as secretary to the board, he has delegated the taking of minutes to 
Christine Hawes. 
 
Rohner passed the meeting to LeaMaster. 

Agenda LeaMaster asked for additions or deletions to the agenda.  There were none. 
Rohner moved to approve the Agenda as presented; Savage seconded; vote taken; the 
motion passed unanimously. 

Conflicts of Interest LeaMaster asked if there were any perceived conflicts or potential conflicts of interest to 
be declared. Some clarification was given by Stokes and Rohner on the definition of 
conflict of interest.  There were none stated. 



Baker County Library District 
Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 25, 2022 

 

Page 2 of 6 

Presentation of 
Proposed Budget by 
Budget Officer 

LeaMaster asked Stokes to present the proposed budget. 
 
Stokes thanked everyone for participating.  In the General Fund, he said, there aren’t 
many significant changes from the prior year in most categories other than allocation of 
increased revenues.  He added that he has distributed Sage Fund replacement sheets 
that were reprinted to correct typing errors.  
 
Stokes began with the Budget Message, reading highlights.  Starting with the first 
paragraph, “I am pleased to present the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Proposed Budget 
for the Baker County Library District, Oregon totaling $2,871,636”.  He stated that the 
Library District is in sound financial health, maintaining Operational Self Sufficiency. 
Revenue boosts and growth has enabled focus on major strategic maintenance projects.  
The IT position will be restored to full-time in preparation for a planned retirement of the 
current IT manager; the new hire is proposed to start in October.  Goals for the new year 
include expansion of digital content, website and logo redesign.  Next year, our Facilities 
Manager will voluntarily drop his hours down to half time to partially retire.  By then 
most of the major improvements on the long term goals list will be completed including 
the roof and the boiler replacement.  The additional funds will be shifted to the IT 
position to boost the salary to a competitive level.  Stokes read a paragraph from page 2, 
“the District will continue to ensure debt-free operation by maintaining reserve funds 
adequate for self-sufficient operations and planned capital improvements.” 
 
Moving back to the Budget Packet and 2022-23 Budget Notes pages 7 and 8, Stokes 
reviewed the graphs comparing Resources and Expenses incurred July through 
November, going over the contingency goal to cover increased expenses.  We are well 
ahead of our projected need through November so cash carryover is in a good position. 
He anticipates Operations Reserves of $550,000 will meet the goal of debt-free 
operations.  
 
The Reserve Fund for Capital Investment projects is well situated to cover priorities at 
the moment.  We have expended about $70,000 this year; that is about half of total 
anticipated cost for the roof project and boiler replacement. The reserve funds needs to 
be replenished for future projects as funds are available.  LeaMaster asked if the roof and 
boiler were the original. Stokes was unsure about the boiler. The roof was replaced with 
the building remodel in the year 2000, so is just over 20 years old. 
 
General Fund - the main revenue stream is from property taxes.  Stokes is using 
projections of 4.5% (slightly down from last year 4.8%).  LeaMaster asked about the 
assessment.  
 
Personnel Services - the main factors of the category increase are staff cost-of-living 
increase and restoration of the IT position to full-time.  The inflation rate is at over 8%.  It 
is expected to remain high.  He has researched what peer libraries are doing with cost-of-
living increases, most are giving 5%.  Overall, Personnel increased by 8.1% ($75,000) 
 



Baker County Library District 
Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 25, 2022 

 

Page 3 of 6 

Materials & Services is increased overall by 6.6% ($28,500). The Collection Development 
will start at 9% of the operating budget and is typically increased through the year.  
Facilities Maintenance is sustained at a peak level in order to continue to prioritize 
strategic plan goals.  Other significant increases include maintaining the new WiFi 
hotspots for public loan and to redesign the website. 
 
Sage Fund - reviewed highlights from the budget.  Retiring staff has been undervalued 
and underpaid.  We have been trying to build capacity so Sage can afford to hire 
someone with the right skill set.  The fund has also decreased its cash reserve in recent 
years to update server equipment and implement major software updates.  The 
upgrades have really boosted performance.   
 
Reserve Fund for Capital Investments - some of these funds have been spent out for 
projects.  The boiler replacement is completed and the roof will get started as soon as 
weather permits.  In this budget, we will replace $15,000.  The Facility Manager has also 
applied for FEMA funds of $22,000 that will go back to the fund. 
 
In summary, Stokes has projected an increase of tax revenues at about $99,000.  These 
funds will make the budget increases sustainable. 
 
Moving to the Legal Budget Sheets: 
Stokes reviewed the columns of interest. 
 
General Fund Resources LB-20:   
In Resources, property values are growing which in turn increases revenues. Starting with 
Net Working Capital, we have historical data back to 2016-17; we had an infusion of 
money in 2020-21; this year we received additional funds bringing cash up to $543,000; 
he anticipates that being about $550,000.  He feels this is less conservative than he 
usually is when projecting revenues, but with property values reportedly spiking, he 
expects it will still be an underestimate.  He reviewed each revenue line comparing 
current year numbers to proposed budget numbers. Donations and Grants line was high 
in 2020-2021 due to Cares Act Reimbursements.  The current year received grants 
totaling $20,577. On the proposed budget this line is reduced to $6,000.  Fiscal Agency 
Fee from Sage pays for Christine’s time plus a fee to cover Perry’s time to manage the 
program.  In total, total resources increased a total of $121,000 over this year.  Stokes 
asked if there were questions on the resources.  LeaMaster asked about line item that 
increased 22%; Stokes said that is the Previously levied taxes estimated to be received.  
Stokes explained that we had a big jump in assessment for county projects.  Those 
settled and gave us a large boost which also feeds into continued higher prior taxes 
coming in.  Some discussion. 
 
General Fund Requirements LB-30: 
Salaries are increasing by $48,000 (8%) again due to restoring the IT position. There is a 
small increase in the benefits for a modest health insurance increase and benefits that 
will increase relative to salary increases. 



Baker County Library District 
Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 25, 2022 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 
Collection development will start at a healthy level.  Library Consortium is our cost for 
Sage, increasing by $1,350.  He reviewed lines of interest here then moved to page 2.  
The Debt Service of $2,000 a year has about another 5 years.  He reviewed transfer lines, 
noting that we are skipping the transfer to the Severance liability year.  We are currently 
ahead of retirement projection needs.  The Contingency line of $5,000 supplements a 
benefits line that subsidizes health insurance deductibles for employees.  We have a high 
deductible plan of 3,000 and typically have 2 or 3 claims each year.  We put aside funds 
to cover those potential needs. Again, we are maintaining a $550,000 contingency.  This 
concludes the Summary. 
 
Next is LB-31 Detail Salary Sheets, starting with Personnel Services: 
Most of the budget lines are one person but a few lines are aggregate for employees of 
the same classification. Highlighting the major changes, one staff has voluntarily reduced 
hours from 40 to 32.  Line 3 is the IT position being restored.  Rohner asked if everyone 
shouldn’t be increasing by at least 5%.  Stokes said there are various reasons why some 
are different, such as staffing changes resulting more or less hours for different 
employees, or a lower starting wage for a new hire in an open position. Discussion on 
changes. Items in yellow, he noted, are ones that include a step increase plus the COLI.  
Stokes said the CEO line is getting a 2.5% COLI to keep the salary at a fair level.  PERS is 
up $10,000 and group health insurance up $10,000.  The Personnel Services category is 
increasing by $73,402 or 8.1% increase.  In addition, he intends to keep the Facility 
position funded so we can keep moving forward with improvements and catch up with 
postponed maintenance.  
 
Moving to LB-31 Materials & Services 
Stokes reviewed highlights of supplies and operations cost increases. The Bookmobile 
line is increasing due to the rising cost of fuel.  We will have an election cost in this 
coming year for board member positions.  The legal administration line is being increased 
to allow for potential contracting of legal counsel. Stokes explained how this past year 
the district encountered situations where legal counsel needed was outside the scope of 
Special Districts. Total increase in requirements is $28,500 or 6.5% increase. 
 
Moving on to Other Funds LB-10 
The cash carryover of $165,000; Stokes plans to retain that. Transfers are decreased to 
$11,500; again skipping the Severance transfer.  The Grants and Loans amount is based 
on projections for grant ideas, such as a diversity audit of our collection. The Online Book 
Sales have slightly decreased; money we make from this goes back to the General Fund.  
In total, an increase of $7,000 or 3.7% increase. 
 
Next is Capital Investment, we will spend about $71,100 from this fund.  We will add 
back to that $15,000 plus a potential FEMA reimbursement for COVID expenses of 
$22,000.  He has built in ample spending authority as there is some uncertainty as to 
when the bills will be paid for the current projects.  We found out that we can spend 
directly out of this fund.   



Baker County Library District 
Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 25, 2022 

 

Page 5 of 6 

 
Sage Library System Fund LB-10 
Cash carryover is reduced primarily with the purchase of new servers.  Projected cash 
carryover of $175,000.  They have increased membership dues to cover operating costs 
and build capacity for critical staff compensation.  The total increased by $30,700 for 
Sage Fund.  Salaries increase by $5,700.   M&S most increase is going to the System 
Support, the contracted assistant to the senior staff of $4,600.  Courier costs are 
projected to increase by $9,200.  Capital outlay estimated at $15,000.  Overall, the 
budget increases by $30,700 or 6.7%. 
 
Stokes thanked his mentors for helping him with all he knows.  He thanked those that 
have helped him.    
 
In the Committee packet is a corrected version of the motion.  It includes an update to 
the Sage Fund figures, using the budget approved by the Sage User Council instead of a 
prior version by mistake. 
 
LeaMaster thanked Stokes for making this easy to read. 

Public Comment 
Opportunity 

LeaMaster asked Stokes if there were any public comments to share or members of the 
public who are online.  Stokes said the Zoom meeting link was posted online.  We note 
that no one from the public was present in person or online. 

Budget Committee 
Questions and 
Deliberations 

LeaMaster asked the committee if there were any further discussions or other questions.  
Some discussion.  Stokes said that Bob announced that this will be his last year to serve 
on the budget committee.  Leamaster said that if there are no other questions, there 
were none; she moved to the next agenda item. 

Approval of the 
Budget 

LeaMaster asked for a copy of the recommended budget committee resolution.  The 
resolution example is in the packet.  She invited someone to make a motion. 
 
Palmer made a motion to approve the Baker County Library District budget for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 for the total amount of $2,871,626., reading the budget for each fund.  I 
also move to approve the permanent  tax rate of $0.5334 per $1,000 of assessed value in 
support of the General Fund and the tax rate from the Local Option Levy of $0.249 per 
$1,000 of assessed value in support of the General Fund;  Savage seconded the motion. 
 
Leamaster said the resolution has been moved and seconded; 
With no further discussion, LeaMaster called for a vote; Yea -8 votes, Nay - none; motion 
passed unanimously. (Yea=Rohner, Palmer, Dielman, Bigelow, Savage,  and LeaMaster; 
also voting yea, Collier and Spriggs attending online). 
 
LeaMaster said the budget has been approved.  

Other Discussion LeaMaster asked if there were any other comments.  There were none. 



Baker County Library District 
Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 25, 2022 

 

Page 6 of 6 

Next Meeting It was noted that the second Budget Committee meeting scheduled for the next day, 
Thursday May 26, 5:00-7:00 pm, will be canceled as the committee finished the review 
and approved the budget tonight.   
 
The budget will be presented at the June 13 regular library board of directors meeting 
where it will be adopted. 
 

Adjourn The meeting was adjourned at 6:14 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes 
Secretary to the Board 
PS/ch 

 

 



hereby adopts the SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET 1 for fiscal year  2021-2022  in the total amount of   $2,827,244 *

This budget is now on file  at _Baker County Public Library  in Baker City, Oregon.

 July 1, 2022, for the following purposes:

Debt Service Fund 

Organizational Unit or Program:  Debt Service 0

875,070    Total……….... $0

473,900

0

0 Org. Unit/Program: _________________ 191,000

Special Payments……………… 0

Not Allocated to Organizational Unit or Program: Transfers Out………… 4,000

Personnel Services…........…… 0 Contingency…………..…… 0

Materials & Services............. 0    Total……….... $195,000

Capital Outlay……...………. 25,000

Debt Service ………… 2,000

Special Payments……………… 0 Org. Unit/Program: _________________ 192,289

Transfers Out………… 44,789 Special Payments……………… 0

Contingency…………..…… 5,000 Transfers Out………… 0

   Total……….... $1,425,759 Contingency…………..…… 0

            Total……….... $192,289

EXHIBIT A. Fund Appropriations Org. Unit/Program: _________________ 309,052

Special Payments……………… 0

Transfers Out………… 0

Contingency…………..…… 20,448

   Total……….... $329,500

Total APPROPRIATIONS, All Funds . . . . $2,142,548

Total Unappropriated and Reserve Amounts, All Funds . . . . 684,696

TOTAL ADOPTED BUDGET . . . . $2,827,244  *

                 X____________________________________________ X_______________________________

         Signature

150-504-073-6 (Rev. 12-13)

RESOLUTION  No._FY2021-22.05

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the   Baker County Library District

RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS

BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts shown below are hereby appropriated for the fiscal year beginning 

(*amounts with asterisks must match)

The above resolution statements were approved and declared adopted on June 13, 2022.

General Fund

Personnel Services…........……

Materials & Services.............

"Other Uses" Fund

Reserve Fund - Capital Investment

Sage Library System Fund



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT  BUDGET RESOLUTION
SUMMARY TABLES

FY 2022-2023

2022‐2023 proposed

FUND
Personnel 
Services

Materials & 
Services

Capital 
Outlay

Debt 
Service

Interfund 
Transfers

Contingency
Special 

Payments
(UEFB) Reserve Total

General Fund $975,271 $461,880 $25,000 $2,000 $16,000 $5,000 $0 $545,086 $2,030,237 $54,782 6.00% ‐$12,389 ‐0.61%
Other Uses Fund $4,500 $185,500 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $194,000 ‐$1,000 3.61% ‐$3,000 ‐1.55%

Reserve Fund ‐ Capital 
Investment $159,189 $159,189 ‐$33,100 ‐17.16% ‐$4,966 ‐3.12%

Sage Library System Fund $117,045 $199,479 $15,000 $0 $0 $21,676 $0 $135,000 $488,200 $23,700 6.29% $11,375 2.33%
TOTALS $1,096,816 $846,859 $199,189 $2,000 $20,000 $26,676 $0 $680,086 $2,871,626 $44,382 4.60% ‐$8,980 ‐0.31%

$ Change from prev. $44,382
% Change from prev. 4.60% -$132,191

2021‐2022 supplemental 1

FUND
Personnel 
Services

Materials & 
Services

Capital 
Outlay

Debt 
Service

Interfund 
Transfers

Contingency
Special 

Payments
(UEFB) Reserve Total

General Fund $875,070 $473,900 $25,000 $2,000 $44,789 $5,000 $0 $549,696 $1,975,455 $67,020 3.39% ‐$67,171 ‐3.40%
Other Uses Fund $1,650 $189,350 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $195,000 $8,000 4.10% ‐$2,000 ‐1.03%

Reserve Fund ‐ Capital 
Investment $192,289 $192,289 $5,789 3.01% $28,134 14.63%

Sage Library System Fund $110,136 $183,916 $15,000 $0 $0 $20,448 $0 $135,000 $464,500 $7,000 1.51% ‐$12,325 ‐2.65%
TOTALS $986,856 $847,166 $232,289 $2,000 $48,789 $25,448 $0 $684,696 $2,827,244 $87,809 3.11% ‐$53,362 ‐1.89%

$ Change from prev. $87,809
% Change from prev. 3.11% -$87,809

2021‐2022 adopted

FUND
Personnel 
Services

Materials & 
Services

Capital 
Outlay

Debt 
Service

Interfund 
Transfers

Contingency
Special 

Payments
(UEFB) Reserve Total

General Fund $901,869 $433,380 $25,000 $2,000 $32,500 $5,000 $0 $508,685 $1,908,435 ‐$182,720 ‐9.57% $198,485 10.40%
Other Uses Fund $1,650 $181,350 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $187,000 ‐$10,000 ‐5.35% ‐$10,000 ‐5.35%

Reserve Fund ‐ Capital 
Investment $186,500 $186,500 $22,345 11.98% $94,900 50.88%

Sage Library System Fund $110,536 $184,066 $15,000 $0 $0 $12,898 $0 $135,000 $457,500 ‐$4,325 ‐0.95% ‐$19,325 ‐4.22%
TOTALS $1,014,055 $798,796 $226,500 $2,000 $36,500 $17,898 $0 $643,685 $2,739,435 ‐$174,700 ‐6.38% $264,060 9.64%

$ Change from prev. ‐$174,700
% Change from prev. ‐6.38% $0

2020‐2021 supplemental 2

FUND
Personnel 
Services

Materials & 
Services

Capital 
Outlay

Debt 
Service

Interfund 
Transfers

Contingency
Special 

Payments
(UEFB) Reserve Total

General Fund $830,229 $606,130 $25,000 $2,000 $118,555 $5,000 $0 $504,241 $2,091,155 $48,529 2.32% $381,205 18.23%
Other Uses Fund $1,650 $189,350 $0 $0 $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $197,000 $0 0.00% $0 0.00%

Reserve Fund ‐ Capital 
Investment $164,155 $164,155 $0 0.00% $72,555 44.20%

Sage Library System Fund $104,669 $188,126 $25,000 $0 $0 $11,184 $0 $132,846 $461,825 ‐$15,000 ‐3.25% ‐$15,000 ‐3.25%
TOTALS $936,548 $983,606 $214,155 $2,000 $124,555 $16,184 $0 $637,087 $2,914,135 $33,529 1.15% $438,760 15.06%

$ Change from prev. $33,529
% Change from prev. 1.15%

VS PREVIOUS VS ORIGINAL

VS PREVIOUS VS ORIGINAL

VS PREVIOUS VS ORIGINAL

VS PREVIOUS VS ORIGINAL

BCLD budget, 2022-23  Page 1 of 8



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT FY 2022-2023

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Adopted Budget Projected actual SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change

Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs prev.

1 1 Available cash on hand* (cash basis) or 1

2 216,851 219,537 197,121 272,341 476,306 525,000 543,970 543,970 18,970 2 Net working capital (accrual basis) 550,000 550,000 550,000 2

3 38,070 29,006 26,751 137,586 45,595 45,000 51,379 55,000 10,000 3 Previously levied taxes estimated to be received 55,000 55,000 55,000 3

4 12,307 11,927 15,278 19,926 11,127 15,000 10,102 12,000 (3,000) 4 Interest 12,000 12,000 12,000 4

5 9,700 29,000 4,720 0 6,000 4,000 0 4,000 0 5 Transferred IN, from other funds 4,000 4,000 4,000 5

6 6  OTHER RESOURCES 6

7 15,923 19,736 19,158 14,474 10,212 15,000 11,954 12,500 (2,500) 7 Fines & Fees 13,000 13,000 13,000 7

8 6,922 7,412 7,582 7,890 7,889 8,000 8,094 8,100 100 8 State revenue (R2R Grant) 8,500 8,500 8,500 8

9 2,719 2,897 0 0 4,302 500 0 500 0 9 Other Tax Revenues 500 500 500 9

10 20,789 6,417 6,308 6,546 6,948 7,000 7,851 8,000 1,000 10 Federal revenue (E-rate) 7,500 7,500 7,500 10

11 0 1,686 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 Special Contracts (Tech support) 0 0 0 11

12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 Job Training Programs 0 0 0 12

13 29,481 12,663 3,718 15,298 182,662 8,000 20,755 20,500 12,500 13 Donations, Grants, & Misc 6,000 6,000 6,000 13

14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 Capital financing 14

15 2,560 2,560 2,000 2,200 1,857 2,000 2,000 2,200 200 15 Fiscal agency fee (Sage) 2,235 2,235 2,235 15

16 31,563 6,464 1,616 0 0 1,411 2,500 16     Other financing sources 3,500 3,500 3,500 16

17 17 17

18 18 18

19 19 19

20 20 20

21 21 21

22 22 22

23 23 23

24 24 24

25 25 25

26 26 26

27 27 27

28 28 28

29 355,322 374,404 289,100 477,877 752,898 629,500 657,517 669,270 39,770 29 Total resources, except taxes to be levied 662,235 662,235 662,235 29

30 1,278,935 1,226,699 1,306,184 27,249 30 Taxes estimated to be received 1,368,002 1,368,002 1,368,002 30
31 964,477 1,004,065 1,105,085 1,190,552 1,227,427 31 Taxes collected in year levied 31

32 1,319,799 1,378,469 1,394,185 1,668,429 1,980,325 1,908,435 1,884,215 1,975,454 67,020 32 TOTAL RESOURCES 2,030,237 2,030,237 2,030,237 32

150-504-020 (rev 10-16)

FORM

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION

RESOURCES
GENERAL FUND

(Fund)

Budget for Next Year  2022-2023Historical Data

Proposed By

Budget Officer

Approved By

Budget 

Committee

Actual

*The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year

LB-20

Adopted By

Governing 

Body

(Name of Municipal Corporation)

BCLD budget, 2022-23 General Fund – Resources Page 1 of 1



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT FY 2022-2023

FORM

LB-30 Baker County Library District

Adopted Budget Projected actual SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding Second Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change Proposed By Approved By Adopted By

Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs prev. Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body

1 1 PERSONNEL SERVICES 1

2 512,454 537,297 537,135 537,123 552,231 601,392 578,594 591,716 (9,676) 2 Salaries 649,740 649,740 649,740 2

3 189,357 212,305 218,436 225,038 256,121 300,478 276,637 282,354 (18,124) 3 Benefits 325,531 325,531 325,531 3

4 0 4 Special Contracts - Grants, Tech Support, Job Training 4

5 22,380 0 1,000 5 Severance 0 5

6 10 6 Payroll Expenses 6

7 7 7

8 701,821 771,982 755,571 762,161 808,352 901,869 855,231 875,070 (26,799) 8 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 975,271 975,271 975,271 8

9 14.00 14.70 15.20 14.85 14.85 15.00 15.20 9 Total Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 15.58 15.58 15.58 9

10 10 MATERIALS AND SERVICES 10

11 99,802 91,538 113,472 106,399 97,097 120,000 129,072 137,500 17,500 11 Collection Development 126,000 126,000 126,000 11

12 12,579 13,042 13,383 13,827 15,172 16,250 15,126 16,250 0 12 Library Consortium 17,600 17,600 17,600 12

13 68,829 155,510 82,181 102,369 275,215 127,900 125,254 129,800 1,900 13 Facilities & IT Maintenance 133,500 133,500 133,500 13

14 45,698 40,881 45,274 39,416 51,688 55,580 66,087 67,830 12,250 14 Corporate Costs 63,080 63,080 63,080 14

15 84,139 96,394 97,463 105,293 106,174 113,650 115,536 122,520 8,870 15 Library Operations 121,700 121,700 121,700 15

16 16 16

17 17 17

18 18 18

19 19 19

20 20 20

21 21 21

22 22 22

23 23 23

24 24 24

25 25 25

26 26 26

27 311,047 397,365 351,773 367,304 545,346 433,380 451,076 473,900 40,520 27 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 461,880 461,880 461,880 27

28 28 CAPITAL OUTLAY 28

29 74,404 0 0 10,283 7,864 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 29 25,000 25,000 25,000 29

30 30 30

31 31 31

32 32 32

33 33 33

34 34 34

35 74,404 0 0 10,283 7,864 25,000 25,000 25,000 0 35 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 25,000 25,000 25,000 35

36 1,087,272 1,169,347 1,107,344 1,139,749 1,361,562 1,360,249 1,331,307 1,373,970 13,721 36 ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT / ACTIVITY TOTAL 1,462,151 1,462,151 1,462,151 36

7.5% -5.3% 2.9% 19.5% 19.3% 1.0% 6.4% 6.4%

REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY

ALLOCATED TO AN ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM & ACTIVITY

(name of fund) (name of Municipal Corporation)

Budget For Next Year 2022-2023

General Fund

150-504-030  (Rev 11-18)

Historical Data
REQUIREMENTS FOR:                                             

(Name of Org. Unit or Program & Activity)

Actual

BCLD budget, 2022-23 General Fund – Requirements Page 1 of 2



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT FY 2022-2023

FORM
LB-30

Adopted Budget Projected actual SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding Second Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change Proposed By Approved By Adopted By

Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs orig. Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body

1 1  PERSONNEL SERVICES NOT ALLOCATED 1

2 2 2

4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 0 0 0 4

5 5 Total Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 5

6 6 MATERIALS AND SERVICES NOT ALLOCATED 6

7 7 7

9 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 0 0 0 9

10 10 CAPITAL OUTLAY NOT ALLOCATED 10

11 11 11

13 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0 13

14 14 DEBT SERVICE 14

15 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 15 Debt service - Baker City LID Resort St Project 2,000 2,000 2,000 15

16 16 16

17 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 17 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 2,000 2,000 2,000 17

18 18 SPECIAL PAYMENTS 18

19 19 19

20 20 20

21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 TOTAL SPECIAL PAYMENTS 0 0 0 21

22 22 INTERFUND TRANSFERS 22

23 1,000 0 2,500 2,500 1,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 0 23 Transfer - Technology & Election 1,000 1,000 1,000 23

24 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 24 Transfer - Severance Liability 0 0 0 24

25 40,000 107,555 20,000 20,000 32,289 12,289 25 Transfer - Capital Improvement Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 25

26 26 26

28 11,000 10,000 12,500 52,500 118,555 32,500 32,500 44,789 12,289 28 TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS 16,000 16,000 16,000 28

29 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 29 OPERATING CONTINGENCY 5,000 5,000 5,000 29

30 508,685 513,409 549,696 41,010 30 RESERVED FOR FUTURE EXPENDITURE 545,086 545,086 545,086 30

31 0 0 0 0 31 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING BALANCE 0 0 31

32 13,000 12,000 14,500 54,500 120,555 548,185 552,909 601,485 53,299 32 Total Requirements NOT ALLOCATED 568,086 568,086 568,086 32

33 1,087,272 1,169,347 1,107,344 1,139,749 1,361,562 1,360,249 1,331,307 1,373,970 13,721 33 Total Requirements for ALL Org.Units/Programs within fund 1,462,151 1,462,151 1,462,151 33

34 219,527 197,121 272,341 476,306 498,209 34 Ending balance (prior years) 34

35 1,319,799 1,378,468 1,394,185 1,670,555 1,980,326 1,908,435 1,884,215 1,975,455 67,020 35 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 2,030,237 2,030,237 2,030,237 35

4.4% 1.1% 19.8% 18.5% 14.2% -4.9% 3.5% 2.8% 2.8%

150-504-030  (Rev 11-18) 6.4% 6.4%

REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY

NOT ALLOCATED TO AN ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM

 (name of Municipal Corporation)

Actual

(name of fund)

 

Historical Data

REQUIREMENTS DESCRIPTION

Budget For Next Year 2022-2023

General Fund Baker County Library District

BCLD budget, 2022-23 General Fund – Requirements Page 2 of 2



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT  FY 2022-2023

FORM

Adopted Budget Projected actual SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change Proposed by $ Change % Change $ Change % Change Approved by Adopted by

Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs prev. Budget Officer vs orig. vs prev. Budget Committee Governing Body

1 1 Object Classification Detail HRS FTE 1

2 73,884 75,362 76,869 84,721 84,721 86,417 86,276 86,417 (0) 2 MGT5 Library Director 40 1.0 88,585 2,168 2.5% 2,168 2.5% 88,585 88,585 2

3 49,086 40,053 41,207 18,912 16,994 19,092 18,859 19,092 (0) 3 19/5 IT Network and Systems Administrator 40 1.0 50,123 31,030 162.5% 31,031 162.5% 50,123 50,123 3

4 27,820 28,488 28,951 29,907 31,642 32,732 32,828 32,850 118 4 15/5 Admin Assistant - Business Mgr 25 0.6 34,371 1,639 5.0% 1,521 4.6% 34,371 34,371 4

5 42,402 43,250 25,103 30,100 35,785 39,067 38,801 39,067 (0) 5 11/5 Admin Assistant - Library Mgr 40 1.0 43,090 4,023 10.3% 4,023 10.3% 43,090 43,090 5

6 38,460 39,229 42,014 43,065 43,495 47,504 47,170 47,504 0 6 13/5 Librarian II - Tech Svcs / Cataloging 40 1.0 49,861 2,357 5.0% 2,357 5.0% 49,861 49,861 6

7 8,506 7,190 7,566 7,635 9,213 15,671 8,906 9,500 (6,171) 7 5/5 Library Asst I - Public Services / Outreach (Bookmobile) 20 0.5 16,460 790 5.0% 6,960 73.3% 16,460 16,460 7

8 36,628 37,361 38,108 37,458 39,451 41,036 40,214 40,250 (786) 8 10/5 Library Assoc II - Coll Mgmt / Serials Specialist 32 0.8 34,472 (6,564) -16.0% (5,778) -14.4% 34,472 34,472 8

9 30,134 32,274 32,919 33,742 34,080 35,433 35,330 35,433 (0) 9 7/5 Library Tech II - Public Services / Youth Svcs Specialist 40 1.0 37,215 1,782 5.0% 1,782 5.0% 37,215 37,215 9

10 9,760 9,966 1,275 1,500 1,500 10 6/5 Library Tech I - IT Asst 12 0.3 5,012 5,012 5,012 10

11 5,236 6,360 0 4,450 0 10,360 4,500 (5,860) 11 5/3-5 Library Asst I - Public Services 11

12 19,286 26,231 31,703 24,443 31,607 26,997 30,320 31,000 4,003 12 6/5 Library Tech I - Coll Mgmt / Processing 32 0.8 25,719 (1,278) -4.7% (5,281) -17.0% 25,719 25,719 12

13 22,837 25,762 27,928 29,741 30,092 32,244 31,489 32,244 0 13 6/3 Library Tech I - Col Mgmt / Processing & Media Specialist 40 1.0 35,446 3,203 9.9% 3,202 9.9% 35,446 35,446 13

14 31,903 32,685 37,163 38,960 39,076 42,753 42,703 42,753 (0) 14 13/5 Librarian II - Community Services + Coll Mgmt 36 0.9 44,875 2,121 5.0% 2,122 5.0% 44,875 44,875 14

15 0 15 5/5 Library Asst I - Public Services / Outreach (Bookmobile) 0 0 15

16 67,413 68,399 64,533 67,096 65,806 78,841 72,220 73,860 (4,981) 16 5/3-5 Library Asst III - Public Services / Outreach (Branch Leads) 101 2.5 83,094 4,253 5.4% 9,234 12.5% 83,094 83,094 16

17 11,060 26,638 28,869 32,259 32,457 33,746 33,638 33,746 0 17 6/5 Library Tech - Facilities Maintenance 40 1.0 35,446 1,700 5.0% 1,700 5.0% 35,446 35,446 17

18 19,646 0 0 18 13/5 Library Asst (prev Admin Asst - Lib Mgr) 0 0 18

19 7,838 10,387 10,885 15,457 22,573 15,673 20,204 21,000 5,327 19 3/5 Library Asst I - Public Services 28 0.7 21,387 5,713 36.5% 387 1.8% 21,387 21,387 19

20 10,394 15,067 17,888 21,043 23,367 27,753 19,862 22,000 (5,753) 20 3/3-5 Library Pages 38 1.0 28,357 604 2.2% 6,357 28.9% 28,357 28,357 20

21 9,761 11,370 13,109 16,188 10,688 12,858 14,317 17,000 4,142 21 X Temp staff / Special Project Pool 16 0.4 12,982 124 1.0% (4,018) -23.6% 12,982 12,982 21

22 160 1,431 2,354 672 1,184 3,215 1,185 2,000 (1,215) 22 X Staff training 4 0.1 3,245 31 1.0% 1,245 62.3% 3,245 3,245 22

23 56,200 75,203 78,853 88,786 97,009 113,574 102,656 104,000 (9,574) 23 BENEFITS Retirement (PERS) 123,905 10,331 9.1% 19,905 19.1% 123,905 123,905 23

24 37,862 41,507 39,464 39,874 41,000 46,006 39,239 40,000 (6,006) 24 BENEFITS Social Security (FICA) 49,705 3,699 8.0% 9,705 24.3% 49,705 49,705 24

25 354 518 2,797 2,291 1,802 3,608 1,162 1,500 (2,108) 25 BENEFITS State Unemployment Tax (SUTA @ .001) + Payroll Exp 3,898 290 8.0% 2,398 159.9% 3,898 3,898 25

26 91,730 91,556 94,508 91,169 113,678 134,476 130,920 134,000 (476) 26 BENEFITS Group Health Insurance 145,034 10,558 7.9% 11,034 8.2% 145,034 145,034 26

27 2,349 2,569 1,751 1,899 1,631 1,804 1,618 1,804 (0) 27 BENEFITS Workers Comp Insurance 1,949 145 8.0% 145 8.0% 1,949 1,949 27

28 862 952 1,063 1,020 1,001 1,008 1,043 1,050 42 28 BENEFITS Life Insurance 1,040 32 3.2% (10) -1.0% 1,040 1,040 28

29 22,380 0 0 0 0 1,000 29 BENEFITS Severance 0 0 (1,000) 0 0 29

30 30 Payroll expenses 30

31 31 31

32 14.0 14.7 15.2 14.8 14.8 15.0 15.2 32 623 15.6 32

33 33 33

34 34 34

35 701,811 771,982 755,571 762,161 808,352 901,869 850,958 875,070 (26,799) 35 975,271 73,402 8.1% 100,201 11.5% 975,271 975,271 35
150-504-031  (Rev 10-16)

DETAILED REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL FUND

(Name of Fund)

Historical Data

REQUIREMENTS FOR:             Personnel Services
Actual

Budget For Next Year 2022-2023

Total Full Time Equivalent (FTE)*
Ending balance (prior years)
UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS

* When budgeting for Personnel Services Expenditures, include number of related full-time equivalent positions.

LB-31

BCLD budget, 2022-23 General Fund - Personnel Page 1 of 1



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT  FY 2022-2023

FORM

Adopted Budget Projected actual SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change Proposed by Approved by Adopted by

Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs prev. Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body

1 1 Object Classification Detail 1

2 99,802 91,538 113,472 106,399 97,097 120,000 129,072 137,500 17,500 2 Collection Development (Books, audiovisual, digital, etc) 126,000 126,000 126,000 2

3 12,579 13,042 13,383 13,827 15,172 16,250 15,126 16,250 0 3 Library Catalog (Sage) 17,600 17,600 17,600 3

4 32,094 99,761 37,891 57,695 211,200 57,500 61,488 62,600 5,100 4 Facilities Maintenance 61,500 61,500 61,500 4

5 12,325 17,937 16,284 18,681 21,792 26,400 20,625 21,000 (5,400) 5 Janitorial Contract 25,000 25,000 25,000 5

6 2,768 2,692 2,615 2,378 5,866 3,000 2,594 3,000 0 6 Janitorial Supplies 3,000 3,000 3,000 6

7 2,690 2,545 2,244 2,262 2,083 2,500 2,079 2,500 0 7 Equipment Maintenance Services / Lease 2,500 2,500 2,500 7

8 18,952 32,575 23,147 21,353 34,274 38,500 38,469 40,700 2,200 8 Computer Maintenance 41,500 41,500 41,500 8

9 5,271 9,051 9,260 6,587 8,167 10,000 13,330 14,500 4,500 9 Bookmobile & Vehicle Operations 14,500 14,500 14,500 9

10 16,672 18,005 18,830 20,619 21,493 22,000 21,893 22,000 0 10 Insurance 22,000 22,000 22,000 10

11 6,019 5,837 5,033 808 2,132 4,000 3,613 4,000 0 11 Travel and Training 4,000 4,000 4,000 11

12 5,827 0 3,210 0 6,221 0 0 0 0 12 Election 3,500 3,500 3,500 12

13 8,165 8,400 8,900 7,500 7,700 8,000 7,900 8,000 0 13 Audit 8,500 8,500 8,500 13

14 1,080 1,347 1,286 1,456 1,569 2,000 2,309 2,500 500 14 Bookkeeping 2,000 2,000 2,000 14

15 2,744 3,022 3,148 3,300 3,246 3,600 3,584 3,600 0 15 Dues and subscriptions 3,600 3,600 3,600 15

16 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 16 Debt Service 2,000 2,000 2,000 16

17 1,908 1,778 1,249 2,448 5,761 10,000 9,948 10,000 0 17 Marketing/Publication 10,000 10,000 10,000 17

18 1,315 1,172 1,273 1,211 1,169 1,380 1,255 1,380 0 18 Financial Mgt Fees 1,380 1,380 1,380 18

19 0 250 895 406 189 100 650 750 650 19 Legal Administration 3,600 3,600 3,600 19

20 475 628 1,200 1,239 1,400 200 20 Professional services 1,200 1,200 1,200 20

21 1,968 1,070 1,450 1,193 1,580 3,300 13,698 14,200 10,900 21 Public Programs 3,300 3,300 3,300 21

22 3,970 4,193 4,271 4,335 2,538 4,500 3,028 3,500 (1,000) 22 Branch Mileage / BCLD Courier 4,500 4,500 4,500 22

23 13,672 15,973 18,934 24,845 26,377 20,500 21,901 23,500 3,000 23 Library Services Supplies 20,500 20,500 20,500 23

24 6,086 10,611 7,803 8,221 8,928 14,000 15,027 15,000 1,000 24 Youth Programs (Summer Reading, storytime, teen) 15,000 15,000 15,000 24

25 1,445 1,206 895 885 928 1,000 1,295 1,300 300 25 Postage/Freight 1,500 1,500 1,500 25

26 40,215 39,790 40,128 43,782 42,098 45,500 43,560 46,420 920 26 Utilities 47,400 47,400 47,400 26

27 13,480 15,570 16,172 16,638 17,138 18,150 17,396 18,300 150 27 Telecommunications 18,300 18,300 18,300 27

28 0 28 Special contracts - grants, tech support travel 28

29 29 Miscellaneous 2930 30 30
31 31 31

32 32 32

33 33 33

34 34 34

35 313,047 399,365 353,773 369,304 547,346 435,380 453,076 475,900 (475,900) 35 463,880 463,880 463,880 35
150-504-031  (Rev 10-16)

DETAILED REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL FUND

(Name of Fund)
Historical Data

REQUIREMENTS FOR:             Materials & Services
Actual

Budget For Next Year 2022-2023

Total Full Time Equivalent (FTE)*
Ending balance (prior years)
UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS

* When budgeting for Personnel Services Expenditures, include number of related full-time equivalent positions.

LB-31

BCLD budget, 2022-23 General Fund - Materials Services Page 1 of 1



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT  FY 2022-2023

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

(Name of Municipal Corporation)

Adopted Budget Projected actual SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change

Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs prev.

1 1 1

2 2 2

3 151,771 161,309 131,428 159,265 167,979 155,000 164,817 165,000 10,000 3 165,000 165,000 165,000 3

4 4 4

5 1,445 2,519 3,122 3,244 1,282 3,500 1,000 1,500 (2,000) 5 2,000 2,000 2,000 5

6 11,000 10,000 12,500 12,500 11,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 0 6 1,000 1,000 1,000 6

7 27,672 0 10,000 500 10,000 10,000 5,000 10,000 0 7 20,000 20,000 20,000 7

8 522 4,669 22,238 1,285 2,675 2,000 1,500 2,000 0 8 2,000 2,000 2,000 8

9 5,500 5,196 6,633 4,695 3,712 4,000 3,700 4,000 0 9 Book Sales 4,000 4,000 4,000 9

10 10 10

11 197,910 183,693 185,921 181,489 196,648 187,000 188,517 195,000 8,000 11 194,000 194,000 194,000 11

12 12 12

13  13 13

14 197,910 183,693 185,921 181,489 196,648 187,000 188,517 195,000 8,000 14 194,000 194,000 194,000 14

16 15 15

16 16

Org Unit or Prog & 

Activity

Object 

Classification
Detail

16

17 1,476 1,087 580 0 0 1,500 0 1,500 0 17 Personnel Wages 4,000 4,000 4,000 17

18 146 135 30 0 0 150 0 150 0 18 Personnel Payroll taxes & related 500 500 500 18

19 19 19

20 25,229 21,954 21,326 3,510 25,856 80,550 84,469 88,800 8,250 20 M&S Memorial & Grants Dept. 83,950 83,950 83,950 20

21 0 0 0 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 0 21 M&S Election reserve 0 0 0 21

22 1 89 0 0 0 1,500 1,038 1,500 0 22 M&S Literacy Dept. 2,000 2,000 2,000 22

23 2 0 0 0 0 5,500 5,358 5,500 0 23 M&S Technology Dept. Reserve 6,500 6,500 6,500 23

24 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 M&S Capital Projects  - MOVED TO SPEC FUND 24

25 47 0 0 0 0 92,000 92,102 92,000 0 25 M&S CONT. Severance Liability Dept. Contingency 93,000 93,000 93,000 25

26 0 0 0 0 0 300 50 50 (250) 26 M&S Corporate Costs (Bank  & sales fees) 50 50 50 26

27 9,700 29,000 4,720 10,000 6,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 27 TRANSFER Transfer Out 4,000 4,000 4,000 27

28 28 28

29 29 29

30 161,309 131,428 159,265 167,979 164,792 30 30

31 0 0 0 31 0 0 0 31

32 197,910 183,693 185,921 181,489 196,648 187,000 188,517 195,000 8,000 32 194,000 194,000 194,000 32

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

(Fund)

DESCRIPTION

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

OTHER USES

(Name of Municipal Corporation)

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

FORM

LB-10

Proposed By

Budget Officer

Approved By

Budget Committee

SPECIAL FUND

Adopted By

Governing Body

Budget for Next Year  2022-2023Historical Data

Actual

RESOURCES

Cash on hand * (cash basis), or

Working Capital (accrual basis)

Previously levied taxes estimated to be received

Interest

Transferred IN, from other funds

**List requirements by organizational unit or program, activity, object classification, then expenditure detail. If the requirement is “not allocated”, then list by object classification and 

expenditure detail.

Grants and Loans

Donations

Other financing sources

Total Resources, except taxes to be levied

Taxes estimated to be received
Taxes collected in year levied

150-504-010 (Rev. 10-16)

REQUIREMENTS **

TOTAL RESOURCES

Ending balance (prior years)
UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

TOTAL REQUIREMENTS
*The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year

BCLD budget, 2022-23 Other Uses Fund Page 1 of 1



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT  FY 2022-2023

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
(Name of Municipal Corporation)

Adopted Budget Projected SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change

Year 2015-2016 Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs orig.

1 1 1

2 2 2

3 135,422 148,801 179,053 202,559 202,800 186,611 165,000 171,783 175,000 10,000 3 175,000 175,000 175,000 3

4 4 4

5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5

6 197,097 203,697 209,006 203,300 217,125 221,836 228,000 227,556 228,000 0 6 Membership dues 245,000 245,000 245,000 6

7 7 7

8 95,404 45,242 57,240 58,300 58,300 61,101 61,000 60,950 61,000 0 8 64,700 64,700 64,700 8

9 772 1,580 1,260 1,668 3,597 1,195 3,500 2,530 2,825 (675) 9 3,500 3,500 3,500 9

10 10 Proceeds from prior fiduciary account 10

11 11 11

12 428,695 399,320 446,559 465,827 481,822 470,743 457,500 462,819 466,825 9,325 12 488,200 488,200 488,200 12

13 13 13

14  14 14

15 428,695 399,320 446,559 465,827 481,822 470,743 457,500 462,819 466,825 9,325 15 488,200 488,200 488,200 15

16 16 16

17 17
Org Unit or Prog & Activity

Object 

Classification
Detail

17

18 18 PERSONNEL SERVICES 18

19 55,708 56,730 57,981 59,118 67,037 67,397 75,250 62,727 75,250 0 19 PERSONNEL SALARIES Systems administrator 80,500 80,500 80,500 19

20 5,310 4,936 5,632 5,857 6,050 6,319 6,500 6,180 6,500 0 20 PERSONNEL SALARIES Admin Assistant - Business Mgr 6,955 6,955 6,955 20

21 61,018 61,666 63,613 64,975 73,087 73,716 81,750 68,907 81,750 0 21 Total Salaries 87,455 87,455 87,455 21

22 22 22

23 8,069 8,600 13,036 14,123 17,673 19,387 20,000 19,000 20,000 0 23 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Retirement 22,700 22,700 22,700 23

24 4,240 4,717 4,866 4,556 7,697 3,534 8,000 5,900 6,000 (2,000) 24 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Social Security 6,700 6,700 6,700 24

25 47 33 31 26 22 77 36 36 36 0 25 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Worker's compensation 40 40 40 25

26 7,215 7,226 7,538 7,665 8,389 0 0 0 0 0 26 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Health insurance 0 0 0 26

27 47 57 70 275 596 -32 650 275 650 0 27 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Unemployment insurance 0 0 0 27

28 95 72 71 95 94 0 0 77 100 100 28 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Life insurance 0 0 0 28

29 1,652 72 100 91 93 110 100 113 125 25 29 PERSONNEL BENEFITS Payroll expenses 150 150 150 29

30 21,365 20,777 25,712 26,831 34,564 23,076 28,786 25,401 26,911 (1,875) 30 Total benefits 29,590 29,590 29,590 30

31 82,383 82,443 89,325 91,806 107,651 96,792 110,536 94,308 108,661 (1,875) 31 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 117,045 117,045 117,045 31

32 32 32

33 33 MATERIALS & SERVICES 33

34 260 294 234 384 352 234 400 400 400 0 34 Telecommunications 400 400 400 34

35 1,733 3,233 5,113 8,232 5,003 11,116 6,000 4,500 6,000 0 35 Technology 6,000 6,000 6,000 35

36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 Accounting and auditing 0 0 0 36

37 300 0 2,560 2,000 2,200 1,857 2,200 1,857 2,200 0 37 Administrative services (BCLD) 2,231 2,231 2,231 37

38 54,908 45,925 48,000 61,000 63,250 64,190 66,881 65,570 66,881 0 38 System support (contracted) 71,563 71,563 71,563 38

39 45,922 4,585 3,233 2,000 3,865 2,552 4,000 2,500 4,000 0 39 Technical services 5,500 5,500 5,500 39

40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 250 0 0 40 Legal services 0 0 0 40

REQUIREMENTS **

TOTAL RESOURCES

Restricted grants

Miscellaneous revenue

Total Resources, except taxes to be levied

Taxes estimated to be received
Taxes collected in year levied

RESOURCES

Cash on hand * (cash basis), or

Working Capital (accrual basis)

Previously levied taxes estimated to be received

Interest

Transferred IN, from other funds

Adopted By

Governing Body

Budget for Next Year  2022-2023Historical Data

Actual

FORM

LB-10

Proposed By

Budget Officer

Approved By

Budget Committee

SPECIAL FUND

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

(Fund)

DESCRIPTION

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

SAGE LIBRARY SYSTEM
(Name of Municipal Corporation)

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

BCLD budget, 2022-23 Sage Fund Page 1 of 2



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT  FY 2022-2023

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
(Name of Municipal Corporation)

Adopted Budget Projected SUPPL Budget 1

Preceding Preceding First Preceding Prior Year Prior Year Prior Year This Year This Year This Year $ Change

Year 2015-2016 Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Year 2019-2020 Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 vs orig.

Adopted By

Governing Body

Budget for Next Year  2022-2023Historical Data

Actual

FORM

LB-10

Proposed By

Budget Officer

Approved By

Budget Committee

SPECIAL FUND

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

(Fund)

DESCRIPTION

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

SAGE LIBRARY SYSTEM
(Name of Municipal Corporation)

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

41 1,013 3,661 1,554 3,146 4,832 1,756 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 41 Dues and subscriptions 5,000 5,000 5,000 41

42 64 27 39 50 61 47 60 50 60 0 42 Postage/freight 60 60 60 42

43 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 25 25 0 43 Printing 25 25 25 43

44 586 94 297 368 1,250 756 500 400 500 0 44 Supplies, Office 500 500 500 44

45 2,460 2,112 2,967 3,127 2,488 84 2,000 3,500 2,000 0 45 Travel 2,000 2,000 2,000 45

46 4,115 1,330 937 861 175 55 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 46 Training & Professional Developmt 1,000 1,000 1,000 46

47 81,689 68,602 82,129 87,091 89,084 94,027 96,000 95,950 96,000 0 47 Courier 105,200 105,200 105,200 47

48 0 0 6,931 2,962 0 2,624 0 1,000 100 100 48 Member credits 0 0 0 48

49 193,050 129,863 153,994 171,221 172,560 179,298 184,066 182,002 184,166 100 49 TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 199,479 199,479 199,479 49

50 50 50

51 51 RESERVE RESERVE FUNDS 51

52 0 0 2,182 0 0 11,152 15,000 25,000 15,000 0 52 Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 15,000 52

53 0 0 0 0 15,000 0 12,898 26,145 26,152 13,254 53 Operating Contingency 21,676 21,676 21,676 53

54 54 54

55 55 55

56 153,263 187,014 201,058 202,800 186,611 183,501 56 56

57 135,000 135,364 132,846 (2,154) 57 135,000 135,000 135,000 57

58 428,696 399,320 446,559 465,827 481,822 470,743 457,500 462,819 466,825 9,325 58 488,200 488,200 488,200 58

150-504-010 (Rev. 10-16)

Ending balance (prior years)

UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

TOTAL REQUIREMENTS
*The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year

**List requirements by organizational unit or program, activity, object classification, then expenditure detail. If the requirement is “not allocated”, then list by object classification and 

expenditure detail.

BCLD budget, 2022-23 Sage Fund Page 2 of 2



 

Year this reserve fund will be reviewed to be continued or abolished.

Date can not be more than 10 years after establishment.

Review Year: 2024

Adopted Budget Projected SUPPL Budget 1

Prior Year This Year This Year This Year

Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022 Year 2021-2022

1 1 1

2 -                          2 121,189 121,189 121,189 2

3 -                          50,382 165,000 159,000 159,000 3 0 0 0 3

4 -                          0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 4

5 382                         657 1,500 1,000 1,000 5 1,000 1,000 1,000 5

6 55,000                   107,555 20,000 32,289 32,289 6 15,000 15,000 15,000 6

7 7 22,000 22000 22000 7

8 8 8

9 9 9

10 55,382                   158,594 186,500 192,289 192,289 10 159,189 159,189 159,189 10

11 11 11

12  12 12

13 55,382                158,594      186,500 192,289 192,289 13 159,189 159,189 159,189 13

14 14 14

15 15

Org. Unit or 

Prog. & 

Activity

Object 

Classification
Detail

15

16 -                          0 186,500 71,100 192,289 16 Facilities maintenance & repair 159,189 159,189 159,189 16

17 17 17

18 18 18

19 19 19

20 20 20

21 21 21

22 22 22

23 23 23

24 24 24

25 25 25

26 26 26

27 27 27

28 28 28

29 55,382                   158,594        29 29

30 0 121,189 0 30 0 0 0 30

31 55,382                158,594      186,500 192,289 192,289 31 159,189 159,189 159,189 31

page ___1____

UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

TOTAL REQUIREMENTS

Taxes estimated to be received
Taxes collected in year levied

TOTAL RESOURCES
REQUIREMENTS **

Total Resources, except taxes to be levied

Cash on hand * (cash basis), or

Working Capital (accrual basis)

Previously levied taxes estimated to be received

Interest

Ending balance (prior years)

Grants and Loans

Proposed By

Budget Officer

Approved By

Budget Committee

Adopted By

Governing Body

Transferred IN, from other funds

FORM 

LB-11

This fund was authorized and established by resolution / ordinance number

DESCRIPTION

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTSSecond Preceding

Year 2019-2020

RESERVE FUND

RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

**List requirements by organizational unit or program, activity, object classification, then expenditure detail. If the requirement is “not allocated”, then list by object 

classification and expenditure detail.

*The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year

_FY18-19 R.003___ on (date) ___6/10/19____ for the following specified purpose:

Major anticipated maintenance and repairs of district facilities 

or other capital assets.

150-504-011 (Rev 10-16)

RESOURCES

BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

Historical Data
Actual

Budget for Next Year 2022 -23

(Name of Municipal Corporation) (Fund)

BCLD Budget, FY2022-23 Page 1 of 1



BAKER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT FY2021-2022

Original adopted vs Suppl 1

General Fund

Original Budget Supplemental Budget 1 Adjustments to Budget Adj. % to Original

Personnel Services $901,869 $875,070 -26,799 -2.97%

Materials & Services $433,380 $473,900 40,520 9.35%

Capital Outlay $25,000 $25,000 0 0.00%

Debt Service $2,000 $2,000 0 0.00%

Total Expenditures 1,362,249 1,375,970 13,721 1.01%

Interfund Transfers 32,500 44,789 12,289 37.81%

Operating Contingency 5,000 5,000 0 0.00%

1,399,749 1,425,759 26,010 1.86%

UEFB Reserve 508,685 549,696 41,010 8.06%

Total - General Fund 1,908,435 1,975,455 67,020 3.51%

Reserve - Capital Investment

Original Budget Supplemental Budget 1 Adjustments to Budget Adj. % to Original

Personnel Services $0 0

Materials & Services $0 0

Capital Outlay $186,500 $192,289 5,789 3.10%

Debt Service $0 $0 0

Total Expenditures 186,500 164,155 5,789 3.10%

Interfund Transfers

Operating Contingency

186,500 164,155 5,789 3.10%

UEFB Reserve

Total - General Fund 186,500 164,155 5,789 3.10%



hereby adopts the budget for fiscal year  2022-2023  in the total amount of   $2,871,626 *

This budget is now on file  at _Baker County Public Library  in Baker City, Oregon.

 July 1, 2022, for the following purposes:

Debt Service Fund 

Organizational Unit or Program:  Debt Service 0

975,271    Total……….... $0

461,880

Org. Unit/Program: _________________ 190,000

Special Payments……………… 0

Not Allocated to Organizational Unit or Program: Transfers Out………… 4,000

Personnel Services…........…… 0 Contingency…………..…… 0

Materials & Services............. 0    Total……….... $194,000

Capital Outlay……...………. 25,000

Debt Service ………… 2,000

Special Payments……………… 0 Org. Unit/Program: _________________ 159,189

Transfers Out………… 16,000 Special Payments……………… 0

Contingency…………..…… 5,000 Transfers Out………… 0

   Total……….... $1,485,151 Contingency…………..…… 0

            Total……….... $159,189

Org. Unit/Program: _________________ 331,524

Special Payments……………… 0

Transfers Out………… 0

Contingency…………..…… 21,676

   Total……….... $353,200

Total APPROPRIATIONS, All Funds . . . . $2,191,540

Total Unappropriated and Reserve Amounts, All Funds . . . . 680,086

TOTAL ADOPTED BUDGET . . . . $2,871,626  *

BE IT RESOLVED that the following ad valorem property taxes are hereby imposed upon the assessed value

BE IT RESOLVED that the taxes imposed are hereby categorized for purposes of Article XI section 11b as: 

                 X____________________________________________ X_______________________________

         Signature

150-504-073-6 (Rev. 12-13)

RESOLUTION  No._FY2021-22.06

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the   Baker County Library District

Permanent Rate Tax..........$___________ OR $ _0.5334_/$1,000

Excluded from Limitation

Sage Library System Fund

Reserve Fund - Capital Investment

Local Option Tax.…..…....$___________ OR $ __0.249_/$1,000

RESOLUTION CATEGORIZING THE TAX

RESOLUTION IMPOSING THE TAX

The above resolution statements were approved and declared adopted on June 13, 2022.

of all taxable property within the district for tax year 2022- 2023 :

(*amounts with asterisks must match)

 (1) In the amount of $ __________ OR  at the rate of $ 0.5334 per $1000 of assessed value for permanent rate tax;

 (2) In the amount of $ __________ OR  at the rate of $ 0.249   per $1000 of assessed value for local option tax; and

 (3) In the amount of $___________ for debt service on general obligation bonds;

General Obligation Bond Debt Service…..$ ___________________

RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS

BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts shown below are hereby appropriated for the fiscal year beginning 

General Fund

Subject to the General Government Limitation

Personnel Services…........……

Materials & Services.............

"Other Uses" Fund



FORM LB‐1 

Telephone: 541‐523‐6419

Actual Amount Adopted Budget Approved Budget

2020‐2021 This Year 2021‐2022 Next Year 2022‐2023
881,278 1,010,000 1,011,189
233,905 245,000 260,235

271,275 96,000 112,200
0 0 0

124,555 36,500 20,000

67,870 73,000 100,000
1,227,427 1,278,935 1,368,002
2,806,310 2,739,435 2,871,626

905,144 1,014,055 1,096,816
750,500 706,796 753,859
19,016 226,500 199,189
2,000 2,000 2,000

124,555 36,500 20,000
0 109,898 119,676

1,005,096 643,685 680,086
2,806,311 2,739,435 2,871,626

808,352 901,869 975,271
14.9 15.0 15.6

110,536 110,536 117,045
1.1 1.1 1.1

918,888 1,012,405 1,092,316

16.0 16.1 16.7

Rate or Amount Imposed Rate or Amount Imposed Rate or Amount Approved

2020‐2021 This Year 2021‐2022 Next Year 2022‐2023

0.5334 0.5334 0.5334

0.249 0.249 0.249

LONG TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds

Other Bonds

Other Borrowings

     Total

Interfund Transfers / Internal Service Reimbursements

Sage Library System

Name of Organizational Unit or Program 

Contingencies

Capital Outlay
Debt Service

All Other Resources Except Current Year Property Taxes

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ‐ REQUIREMENTS AND FULL‐TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES (FTE) BY ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM *

Materials and Services

Special Payments

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACTIVITIES and SOURCES OF FINANCING *

           Total FTE

     Total Requirements

     FTE for that unit or program

on July 1.

Current Year Property Taxes Estimated to be Received
     Total Resources 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ‐ REQUIREMENTS BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION

     FTE

Personnel Services

     Total Requirements

$9,850

$9,850

The BCLD FY22‐23 General Fund budget assumes a 4.5% rate of TAV growth for Baker County. This approved budget is a picture of the District in increasingly 

sound financial health, with stable funding from taxable property value growth, a reserve pool sufficient for debt‐free operations, and a reserve fund for 

strategic maintenance projects. Budget cost drivers for the coming year are primarily from restoration of the IT Manager position to full‐time, employee wage 

inflation pressure, health and retirement benefits, expansion of digital content and access services, numerous building maintenance projects, and increased 

investment in strategic marketing. General staff are granted a 5.0% COLI proportionate to the latest inflation projections. Any surplus revenues will be 

prioritized for Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance / Operating Reserves to maintain debt‐free operation, facilities improvement projects, and collection 

development.

 Levy For General Obligation Bonds

$0

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES

Estimated Debt Outstanding 

 Permanent Rate Levy      (rate limit  _________ per $1,000)

Contact: Kyra Rohner (Board Pres.); Perry Stokes (Library Director)

     FTE

Not Allocated to Organizational Unit or Program

Federal, State & all Other Grants, Gifts, Allocations & Donations

      FTE

Unappropriated Ending Balance and Reserved for Future Expenditure

Interfund Transfers

 Not Incurred on July 1

Library Services

Email: krohner@bakerlib.org ;  librarian@bakerlib.org

 Local Option Levy

Estimated Debt Authorized, But 

                         NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING               

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ‐ RESOURCES

Beginning Fund Balance/Net Working Capital

Revenue from Bonds and Other Debt 

TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS

Fees, Licenses, Permits, Fines, Assessments & Other Service Charges

be lfor   access by Internet  or phone wiletails dRemote attendance .  pm PST 6:00at 2220,13Junewill be held on Baker County Library District A public meeting of the 
The purpose of this meeting is to discuss the budget for the fiscal year hours in advance of the meeting. 24 at least org bakerlib.www.provided on the library website  

or language accommodations are needed for technical, If special physical, Budget Committee.  Baker County Library District as approved by the 22 20, 1beginning July 
this public session, please notify Baker County Library District by email or calling (541) 523‐6419 at least 24 hours prior to the session. 

A summary of the budget is presented below. 
online at or viewed business hours libraryduring _, Baker City)Resort St,2400 Baker County Public Library (A copy of the budget may be inspected or obtained at 

budget period.  annualThis budget is for an  _. htmlbudget.about/org/bakerlib.http://_



Check here if this is 

. Be sure to read instructions in the Notice of Property Tax Levy Forms and Instruction booklet an amended form.

The has the responsibility and authority to place the following property tax, fee, charge or assessment

on the tax roll of County.  The property tax, fee, charge or assessment is categorized as stated by this form.

97814
State ZIP code

Contact Person Contact Person E-Mail

CERTIFICATION - You must check one box if your district is subject to Local Budget Law.

The tax rate or levy amounts certified in Part I are within the tax rate or levy amounts approved by the budget committee.

The tax rate or levy amounts certified in Part I were changed by the governing body and republished as required in ORS 294.456.

PART I:  TAXES TO BE IMPOSED

   

1. Rate per $1,000 or Total dollar amount levied (within permanent rate limit) . . . 1     

2. Local option operating tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2     

3. Local option capital project tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3     

4. City of Portland Levy for pension and disability obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4     

5a. Levy for bonded indebtedness from bonds approved by voters prior to October 6, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . 5a.

5b. Levy for bonded indebtedness from bonds approved by voters on or after October 6, 2001  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5b.

5c. Total levy for bonded indebtedness not subject to Measure 5 or Measure 50 (total of 5a + 5b) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5c.

PART II:  RATE LIMIT CERTIFICATION

6. Permanent rate limit in dollars and cents per $1,000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6  

7. Election date when your new district received voter approval for your permanent rate limit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7  

8. Estimated permanent rate limit for newly merged/consolidated district . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8  

PART III:  SCHEDULE OF LOCAL OPTION TAXES  -  Enter all local option taxes on this schedule.  If there are more than two taxes,

   attach a sheet showing the information for each.

Final tax year 

to be levied

2026-2027

Part IV. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, FEES AND CHARGES

Description Excluded from Measure 5 Limitation

1

2

If fees, charges, or assessments will be imposed on specific property within your district, you must attach a complete listing of

properties, by assessor’s account number, to which fees, charges, or assessments will be imposed. Show the fees, charges, or

assessments uniformly imposed on the properties. If these amounts are not uniform, show the amount imposed on each property.

The authority for putting these assessments on the roll is ORS __________________ (Must be completed if you have an entry in Part IV)

150-504-073-7 (Rev. 12-15) (see the back for worksheet for lines 5a, 5b, and 5c)

0.249

0.5334

local option ballot measure authorized per year by voters

0.5334

MAY 18 2021

7/1/2021
Mailing Address of District City

Rate -or- Dollar Amount

Notice of Property Tax and Certification of Intent to Impose a 

Tax, Fee, Assessment or Charge on Property

District Name

Baker County Library District

To assessor of  BAKER County

FORM LB-50

2022-2023

Title

Date

541-523-6419 director@bakerlib.org
Daytime Telephone

Subject to

General Government Limits

File with your assessor no later than JULY 15, unless granted an extension in writing.

Dollar Amount of Bond 

Levy

0

(operating, capital project, or mixed)

Purpose Date voters approved

Baker

2400 Resort St      Baker City OR

Perry Stokes Library Director/CEO/Budget Officer

County Name

OPERATING 0.2492022-2023

Subject to General Government Limitation

Excluded from            

Measure 5 Limits

levied

Tax amount -or- rateFirst tax year

ED 50    119




































































































